
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Mark Ammel, Mayor 
Karen Moore, Mayor Pro Tem 

Ronald J. Beauchamp, Council Member 
Tyler DuBord, Council Member  

Todd Flath, Council Member 

 
CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

March 7, 2024 
 

James R. McNeil, City Manager 
Phil DeMay, City Clerk 

Laura J. Genovich, City Attorney 

 
City Council Chambers located at: City Hall – 410 Ludington Street – Room C101 – Escanaba, MI 49829 

The Council has adopted a policy to use a Consent Agenda, when appropriate. All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion 
of these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the General Order of Business and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda. 
 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, March 7, 2024, at 7:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
APPROVAL/CORRECTION(S) TO MINUTES – Regular Meeting – February 15, 2024 
APPROVAL/ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION(S) 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
1. First Reading of Ordinance No. 1287, New D – Local Business Zoning District Ordinance of 2024, and Setting the Date 

of Thursday, April 4, 2024, for the Second Reading, Public Hearing, and Adoption – Planning & Zoning. 
Explanation:  Administration is requesting the City Council to consider this the first reading of Ordinance No. 1287, 
New D – Local Business Zoning District Ordinance of 2024. Administration is requesting that the City Council set April 
4, 2024, for the second reading, public hearing adoption of Ordinance No. 1287. 
 

2. Approval – Stump Grinding – Public Works. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to retain Dombrowski Tree Service for removal, 
restoration, and seed for 45 stumps with $31.50 for restoration for stump grinding. This is a budgeted item for the 
current amount of stumps.  
 

3. Approval – Trees Cut Down and Removed from Compost Area Bid – Public Works. 
Explanation: Administration is seeking City Council approval to have contractor cut down and remove approximately 
4.5 acres of trees at no cost to the city.   
 

4. Approval – MPower Mapping Cleanup “Line Tracing” – WTP – Water Department. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to retain the services of MPower from Iron Mountain, 
MI, for water system map cleanup for the City of Escanaba Water Treatment Plant in an amount not to exceed 
$4,800.00. Money is budgeted and available for this type of work. 
 

5. Approval – Automation of Wastewater Plant – Wastewater Department. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to retain the services of Master Electric of Escanaba, 
MI, for the automation of the Wastewater Treatment Plant in an amount not to exceed $35,953.00 to include 
$5,000.00 in contingencies. $30,000.00 is budgeted and available within the fiscal year. The remainder of the money 
is available through the wastewater fund. 
 
 



Agenda – March 7, 2024 
 
6. Approval – Distribution Inventory Materials – ARPA 1 – Water Department. 

Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to purchase Water Distribution inventory materials 
from ETNA of Marquette, MI, in the amount of $160,000.00 and Core and Main of DePere, WI, in the amount of 
$190,000.00 for a total not to exceed $350,000.00. Money is available and budgeted for this purchase in the current 
fiscal year. 
 

7. Approval – Traffic Control Orders (TCO) No. 1015 – 1025 – Department of Public Safety. 
Explanation: Administration is seeking City Council approval of TCO’s No. 1015 – 1025. Traffic Control Orders expire 
90 days from the filing date unless approved by Council. The Traffic Control Orders call for the following: 
 No. 1015 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 4th Ave N and N 18th St. 
 No. 1016 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 8th Ave N and N 19th St. 
 No. 1017 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 10th Ave N and N 20th St. 
 No. 1018 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 11th Ave N and N 20th St. 
 No. 1019 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 12th Ave S and S 16th St. 
 No. 1020 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 14th Ave S and S 15th St. 
 No. 1021 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 17th Ave S and S 16th St. 
 No. 1022 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 18th Ave S and S 22nd St. 
 No. 1023 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of 24th Ave S and S 22nd St. 
 No. 1024 – Yield Sign be installed at the intersection of Park Ave and 16th Ave S. 
 No. 1025 – A Caution Autism Child Sign be placed in front of or near 930 S 17th St. 
 

APPOINTMENTS          
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS      
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT        
ANNOUNCEMENTS       
ADJOURNMENT          
 

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
 
James R. McNeil 
City Manager 
 
 

 



  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Regular Council Meeting 

Thursday, February 15, 2024 
 
The meeting was called to order by the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall located at 410 Ludington Street. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler 

DuBord, Todd Flath, and Karen Moore 
 
Absent: None 
 
Also Present: City Manager James R. McNeil, City Clerk Phil DeMay, Department Heads, 

media, and members of the public. 
 

City Clerk DeMay led Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Beauchamp moved, Moore seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve 
Regular Meeting minutes from February 1, 2024, as submitted. 
 

 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Flath moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the City 
Council Agenda as submitted. 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – None 
 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT - None 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
PH-1 Public Hearing – Citizen Participation – 2024-25 Fiscal Year Budget 
Preparation.   
 

A public hearing was conducted to facilitate input from citizens for the City’s next fiscal 
year budget. This was the second of five (5) scheduled public hearings. 

 
This being a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for public comment. 
 
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 



City Council Minutes  
February 15, 2024 – cont. 
 

2 
 

NB-1 Approval – 2024 Escanaba Aerial Photos - Engineering. 
 

Administration sought City Council approval of the total price as quoted by State of 
Michigan Imagery and Lidar Program (MiSAIL) as quoted in the amount of $12,210.90 
to complete aerial photos of the City of Escanaba. 
 
NB-1 DuBord moved, Moore seconded, to approve of the total price as quoted by 
State of Michigan Imagery and Lidar Program (MiSAIL) as quoted in the amount of 
$12,210.90 to complete aerial photos of the City of Escanaba. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel   
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
  

 
NB-2 Approval – Caterpillar Inc. Model 310-07 Mini Excavator – Water Department. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to purchase a 2023 Caterpillar Inc. 
Model 310-07 Mini Excavator from Fabick CAT of Marquette, MI, ($86,900.00) with a 
trade in of our present John Deere 60G Compact Excavator in an amount not to 
exceed $89,000.00 including contingency money. 
 
NB-2 Beauchamp moved, Moore seconded, to approve to purchase a 2023 Caterpillar 
Inc. Model 310-07 Mini Excavator from Fabick CAT of Marquette, MI, ($86,900.00) 
with a trade in of our present John Deere 60G Compact Excavator in an amount not 
to exceed $89,000.00 including contingency money. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Beauchamp, Moore, DuBord, Flath, Mayor Ammel   
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-3 Approval – Caterpillar Inc. Model 318-07 Wheel Excavator – Water 
Department. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to rent/purchase a 2023 CAT M318-
07 Wheeled Excavator from Fabick CAT of Marquette, MI, at a cost not to exceed 
$325,000 including contingencies. 
 
NB-3 DuBord moved, Moore seconded, to approve to rent/purchase a 2023 CAT 
M318-07 Wheeled Excavator from Fabick CAT of Marquette, MI, at a cost not to 
exceed $325,000 including contingencies. 
 



City Council Minutes  
February 15, 2024 – cont. 
 

3 
 

Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel   
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-4 Approval – Investigation to Deregister from NERC – Electric Department. 
 

Administration sought City Council approval to hire Power System Engineering to 
investigate whether the City is able to deregister from its current NERC responsibilities 
in an amount not to exceed $10,000. Funds were available and budgeted for 
Professional Services. 
 
NB-4 Moore moved, Beauchamp seconded, to approve to hire Power System 
Engineering to investigate whether the City is able to deregister from its current NERC 
responsibilities in an amount not to exceed $10,000. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Moore, Beauchamp, DuBord, Flath, Mayor Ammel   
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

NB-5 Approval – Purchase Renewable Energy Certificates – Electric Department. 
 

Administration sought City Council approval to purchase Renewable Energy 
Certificates (REC's) at a cost not to exceed $4.50/REC and a total not to exceed 
$135,000. This item was not included in the current budget. 
 
NB-5 Moore moved, Beauchamp seconded, to approve to purchase Renewable 
Energy Certificates (REC's) at a cost not to exceed $4.50/REC and a total not to 
exceed $135,000.  
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Moore, Beauchamp, DuBord, Flath, Mayor Ammel   
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 
APPOINTMENT(S) TO CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES – None 
 
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
  



City Council Minutes  
February 15, 2024 – cont. 
 

4 
 

Council Members reviewed City Board and Commission meetings each attended 
since the last City Council Meeting. 
 
 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

• Players de Noc opens February 29th with “Lumberjacks in Love”. 

• Bonifas is partnering with the DDA and the Marketplace utilizing the commercial 
kitchen for their culinary cooking series.  

 

Hearing no further public comment, Flath moved,  DuBord seconded, the Council 
adjourned at 8:02 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Phil DeMay     Approved: ____________________ 
City Clerk              Mark Ammel, Mayor 





 
 P.O. Box 948 • Escanaba, MI 49829 P 906-786-9402 • F 906-786-4755  

 
 

Mission Statement 
Enhancing the enjoyment and livability of our community by providing quality 

municipal services. 
           

MEMORANDUM 

To: City Council 

From: Planning Commission 

Date: February 20, 2024 

Subject: Summary of Public Hearing Comments, 
New D – Local Business District 
Ordinance of 2024 

As a supplement to the Planning Commission’s recommendation of a draft amendment on the 
noted subject, please see this summary of comments.  Forwarding a summary of comments, 
such as is done by this memo, is considered a best practice when amending a zoning ordinance. 

This comment was made in person at the Planning Commission’s public hearing held on the 
matter on February 8th.   

Opposed (1 Comments). 

Chris Williams opposed the zoning map amendment as she felt it was spot zoning.  She owns 
property adjacent to the property subject to the Amendment and notes that because a gas 
station once occupied the property in question, her property is burdened with environmental 
cleanup due to leaky underground fuel tanks.  She felt that there are plenty of allowances for 
businesses in “A” zoning districts and there was no need to change the zoning. 

Supported (0 Comments). 

There were no supporting comments. 

 bel/TA 



ORDINANCE NO. 1287 

 
NEW D – LOCAL BUSINESS ZONING DISTRICT ORDINANCE OF 2024 

 
WHEREAS, The People of the City of Escanaba did establish “An Ordinance to Amend 
Chapters I-XXII of The Zoning Ordinance as Codified Under Appendix A of the Code 
of Ordinances” on the 5th day of May 2022, with subsequent amendments thereto, 
hereinafter “the Zoning Ordinance”, and it is now desired to amend the Zoning Map 
established therein by adding another zoning district of the class known as “D – Local 
Business”, NOW THEREFORE, THE PEOPLE OF THE CITY OF ESCANABA 
HEREBY ORDAIN: 

 
CHAPTER I 

 
The Zoning Ordinance, section 401.3, established the Zoning Map. Said Zoning Map 
shall now be amended through the addition of a new district of an existing class. The 
boundaries of said new district shall contain only the following described property: 

 
Lots 8 and 9 of Block 6 of the Lake Shore Drive Addition No. 1 of the City 
of Escanaba, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Liber 1216 of 
Deeds, Page 446, Delta County Records; 
Parcel No. 051-210-3606-303-005; 
Commonly known as 2730 Lake Shore Drive. 

 
Said new district shall be classified as “D – Local Business”. The surrounding districts’ 
boundaries shall be adjusted to reflect those of said new district. Further interpretation 
of district boundaries shall comply with the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

CHAPTER II 

SAVINGS CLAUSE 

 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be 
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this 
Ordinance. 

 
The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, section, 
subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or 
more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases be declared 
unconstitutional. 

 
CHAPTER III 

CONFLICTING ORDINANCES REPEALING CLAUSE 

 
All Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 
CHAPTER IV 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect ten (10) days after its passage and 
publication. 
 
APPROVED:  APPROVED: 
 
 
 
    
Laura Genovich, City Attorney  Mark Ammel, Mayor 
 
 
Ordinance No. 1287  ATTEST: 

Date Approved:   

Date Published:     

  Phil DeMay, City Clerk 

 



 
 
Ordinance No. 1287 

2  

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of an ordinance 
duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Escanaba, County of Delta, State of 
Michigan, at a regular meeting held on (Date) day of (Month), 2024. Said meeting was 
conducted, with public notice given, pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open 
Meetings Act, being MCL 15.261 et seq. Further, said ordinance was published in the 
Daily Press, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Escanaba on (Day), 
(Month) (Date), 2024. The minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been 
made available as required by said Act. 

 

 

Phil DeMay, City Clerk 



tanthony
Rectangle

tanthony
Rectangle

tanthony
Rectangle







 
 P.O. Box 948 • Escanaba, MI 49829 P 906-786-9402 • F 906-786-4755  

 
 

Mission Statement 
Enhancing the enjoyment and livability of our community by providing quality 

municipal services. 
           

MEMORANDUM 

To: City Council 

From: Planning Commission 

Date: February 20, 2024 

Subject: Zoning Map Amendment Procedures 

In considering any petition for an amendment to the text of this Ordinance or to the Official 
Zoning Map, the Planning Commission and City Council shall consider the following criteria that 
apply to the application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision. The Planning 
Commission and City Council may also take into account other factors or considerations that 
are applicable to the application but are not listed below.1 

[In considering zoning map amendments (rezonings), t]he following questions shall be 
considered:2 

A. Are there substantial reasons why the property cannot be reasonably use as currently 
zoned? (sic) 

B. Is the use more appropriately handled as a permitted use by right, or as a special land use in 
the existing district or another district? 

C. Is the zone change supported in the Master Plan? 
D. Would a change of present district boundaries be compatible with existing land uses in the 

area? Would it adversely affect property values? 
E. Are adequate sites available elsewhere that are already properly zoned to accommodate 

the proposed use? 
F. Would the rezoning constitute a spot zone granting special privileges to one landowner not 

available to others? 
G. Was there a mistake in the original zoning classification? 
H. Has there been a change of conditions in the area supporting the proposed rezoning? 
I. Would the change severely impact traffic, public facilities, and the natural characteristics of 

the area, or significantly change population density? 
J. Is the proposed change out of scale with the needs of the community? 
K. If the change is approved, what will be the probable effect on stimulation of similar zoning 

requests in the vicinity? Would this secondary effect negatively impact community plans 
and public services? 

L. Is the proposed change precedent setting? 
M. Is the proposed boundary appropriate? 

 TA 

 
1 (City of Escanaba, Code of Ordinances, Appdx. A, Sec. 103.4.2) 
2 (City of Escanaba, Code of Ordinances, Appdx. A, Sec. 103.4.3(II)) 





Stump Grinding Bid Memorandum 

 

     At the council meeting on 11-16-2023, the stump grinding bid was approved to hire 

Dombrowski Tree Service to ground 45 stumps. At the time with work done for trees the 

number that would be able to be ground was uncertain. At a minimum the 45 approved needed 

to be ground. With the approval late in the year, the stumps have been planned to get ground 

this coming spring.  

 Speaking with Dombrowski tree service they’re willing to do additional stumps at the 

same cost per stump and the restoration as the original bid.  

Work Item Minimum Quantity Unit Proposed Unit Price 

Stump Grinding  
6 to 29 inches 

25 Ea 70 

Stump Grinding  
30 inches and larger 

20 Ea 85 

Restoration 45 Ea 31.50 

 

 

    Stumps have been bid out since 2008, as Public Works hasn’t had the correct equipment to 

ground stumps efficiently enough to do them. With the right equipment and attachment in the 

future, it would make more sense to have Public Works ground the stumps.  















 
 
 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
 

Sealed bids will be received by the City of Escanaba at the office of the City Clerk, on or 
before 2:00 p.m. - local time - on March 7th, 2024. 
 
Bids will be publicly opened and read in the City Council Chambers at said time and date. 
 
Bidder’s proposals and/or specifications may be obtained from the office of the City Clerk, 
located at 410 Ludington Street, Escanaba, Michigan 49829.  No bid will be considered 
unless the proposal form and/or specifications (furnished by the City of Escanaba, 
Michigan) are properly completed and enclosed in a sealed envelope marked: 
 

Cut Trees and Remove-2024 
 

In addition, the City of Escanaba, Michigan, will not consider any proposal which has not 
been received prior to the published time and date of bid opening.  FAX transmittals will 
not be accepted. 
 
The City of Escanaba, Michigan, reserves the right to reject any or all bids, or any part 
thereof, at its discretion and to waive any irregularities in the bidding.  The City of 
Escanaba, Michigan; may also split bids at its discretion. The City further reserves the right 
to negotiate directly with any or all bidders concerning any matter related to any bid. 
 
All City of Escanaba, Michigan, bids are prepared to afford all vendors the equal 
opportunity for fair and equitable competition. The City of Escanaba, Michigan, assumes 
no liability or responsibility for any errors or oversights in the preparation and/or 
publication of bids. 
 
Any questions concerning this bid should be directed to the Director of Public Works Kent 
Dubord at (906) 786-1842 or kdubord@escanaba.org. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BIDDER’S PROPOSAL 
 

We, the Contractor, agree to cut down all trees in the taped off areas of the compost site 
and remove for the City of Escanaba. The work items included in this proposal shall consist 
of the following: 
 

1. Tree Cutting 

• Cut down approximately 4.5 acres of taped off areas of trees, circled in the 
attached paper in the compost area. 

• Cut to the base of the stump. 

• Remove the wood contractor agrees to cut down from the compost site.  
 

2. Restoration 

• Remove the cut down trees from the bid within the compost area.   
 

The Contractor also agrees to the following: 

• The Department of Public Works shall be informed of the work schedule.  All 
delays in work shall be reported to the Department of Public Works.  

• Miss Dig shall be notified prior to cutting down any trees and removing any 
stumps. 

• Trees that cannot be removed shall be reported to the Department of Public 
Works within a timely manner. 

• All work shall be completed by June 30, 2024. 
 

     Unit prices for each item of work shall be based on the minimum quantities below. This 
estimate may increase or decrease at the discretion of the City of Escanaba at any time. 
Plans are for the contractor to cut down trees and remove them at no cost to the City of 
Escanaba. The contractor agrees to remove the wood from the compost area. In addition, 
the contractor agrees to pull excess stumps from the ground and leave in the compost 
area.  
 

Work Item 
Minimum 
Quantity 

Unit 
Proposed 
Unit Price 

Approximate 4.5 
acres of trees to cut 
down and remove 

 ea 0 

Additionally will 
remove number of 
excess stumps 

 ea 0 

Prices F.O.B.: City of Escanaba, Michigan 
SUBMITTED BY:      
 
FIRM:    __________________________________ 

ADDRESS:   __________________________________  

SIGNATURE: __________________________________ 

PRINTED:   __________________________________ 

TITLE:    __________________________________ 

PHONE:   __________________________________ 



INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Each bid shall include a certificate of insurance.  The City of Escanaba reserves the right 
to reject any bid based on inadequate insurance coverage. Required minimum coverage 
is as follows: 
 
Worker’s Compensation 
 

Coverage A  Statutory 
Coverage B  $100,000 

 
Comprehensive General Liability 

 
Per occurrence  $1,000,000 

 
General Aggregate     $1,000,000 
Products/completed operations  
 
General Aggregate     $1,000,000 

 
 
Comprehensive Automobile Liability  
 
 Combined Single Limits    $1,000,000 
 
 
 
The City of Escanaba shall be named as “additional insured” on all certificates. All policies 
affording coverage required in this section shall further be endorsed to provide a ten (10) 
day notice to be delivered to the City before any coverage is either reduced or cancelled. 












































	03.07.2024 - City Council Mtg - Regular
	cm02.15.2024
	NB-1
	NB-1
	Exhibit A - City Council Agenda Item Request - ZMA23001
	Exhibit B - City Council Agenda Item Request - ZMA23001
	Exhibit C - City Council Agenda Item Request - ZMA23001
	Exhibit D - City Council Agenda Item Request - ZMA23001
	Exhibit E - City Council Agenda Item Request - ZMA23001

	NB-2
	MX-M363N_20240229_110717
	NB-2
	Stump Grinding Bid Memorandum
	Stump Grinding Info. from November approval


	NB-3
	MX-M363N_20240229_111205
	Compost Area Tree Removal-GIS view (1)

	NB-4
	MX-M363N_20240229_141114

	NB-5
	MX-M363N_20240229_142144

	NB-6
	MX-M363N_20240229_143011
	NB-6

	NB-7



